CAMBRIDGE UNIVERSITY **REPORTER**

No 6414

WEDNESDAY 10 FEBRUARY 2016

Vol cxlvi No 19

CONTENTS

Notices

Calendar	350
Discussion on Tuesday 16 February: Cancellation	350
Election to the Nominating Committee for	
External Members of the Council	350
Election to the Board of Scrutiny	350
Honorary Degree Congregation: 15 June 2016	350
Vacancies, appointments, etc.	
Electors to the BP Professorship of Chemistry	351
Electors to the BP Foundation McKenzie	
Professorship of Earth Sciences	351
Electors to the Professorship of Music	351
Vacancies in the University	352
Appointments, reappointments, and grants of title	352
Awards, etc.	
Scholarships and Prizes, etc. awarded	352
Cambridge Endowment for Research in	
Finance (CERF)	353
Seatonian Prize	353
Events, courses, etc.	
Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.	353
Regulations for examinations	
Examination in Applied Biological	
Anthropology for the M.Phil. Degree	353
Notices by Faculty Boards, etc.	
Natural Sciences Tripos, Part II (Biological	
and Biomedical Sciences), 2016-17	353
Form and conduct of examinations, 2016	
Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Tripos,	
Part II, 2016: Correction	356
Theological and Religious Studies Tripos,	
Part IIB, 2016: Correction	356

Reports	
Report of the Council on the arrangements for	
approving market pay	356
Class-lists, etc.	
Approved for degrees	357
Obituaries	
Obituary Notices	360
Graces	
Graces submitted to the Regent House on	
10 February 2016	360
Graces to be submitted to the Regent House at a	
Congregation to be held on 20 February 2016	361
Acta	
Approval of Graces submitted to the Senate on	2(1
27 January 2016	361
End of the Official Part of the 'Reporter'	
Report of Discussion	
Tuesday, 2 February 2016	362
College Notices	
Prizes	362
Vacancies	362
Events	362
External Notices	
University of Oxford	362



NOTICES

Calendar

13 February, *Saturday*. Lent Term divides.
14 February, *Sunday*. Preacher before the University at 11.15 a.m., Professor W. G. A. Jeanrond, Master of St Benet's Hall, Oxford (Hulsean Preacher).
20 February, *Saturday*. Congregation of the Regent House at 2 p.m. (see p. 361).

Discussions at 2 p.m.	Congregations
1 March	20 February, Saturday at 2 p.m.
15 March	19 March, Saturday at 11 a.m.
	2 April, Saturday at 11 a.m.

Discussion on Tuesday, 16 February: Cancellation

The Vice-Chancellor gives notice that the Discussion announced for Tuesday, 16 February 2016 will not take place as there are no Reports ready for discussion.

The Report published in this issue (p. 356) will be discussed on 1 March 2016.

Election to the Nominating Committee for External Members of the Council

5 February 2016

The Vice-Chancellor announces that he has received the following nomination for election to the Nominating Committee for External Members of the Council in class (c) (a member elected by the Regent House from among those who at the time of election are current members of Council in classes (a), (b), and (c); see *Reporter*, 6411, 2015–16, p. 325), and that it has been certified to him that the candidate has consented to be so nominated:

Dr RUTH LISA CHADWICK CHARLES, N, nominated by Dr J. M. Wilkins and Dr D. A. Rasheed, CHU.

No other candidates having been nominated, the Vice-Chancellor declares that Dr Charles is elected to the Nominating Committee in class (c) with immediate effect until 30 September 2017. As no candidates have been nominated for the remaining vacancy in class (d), a further election shall be announced.

Election to the Board of Scrutiny

5 February 2016

No candidate has been nominated for election to the Board of Scrutiny in class (c)(ii) (a member of the Regent House; see *Reporter*, 6411, 2015–16, p. 325).

Regulation 2 for the election of members of the Board of Scrutiny (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 116) provides that, if at an election insufficient nominations are received to fill all the places either in class (c)(i) or in class (c)(i), the Council shall appoint as many members as may be necessary or shall ask the Vice-Chancellor to arrange a further election. The Council will therefore be asked whether it wishes to make an appointment to the vacancy or to re-open nominations.

Honorary Degree Congregation: 15 June 2016

8 February 2016

The Vice-Chancellor reminds members of the University that a Congregation will be held on Wednesday, 15 June 2016, at which the Chancellor expects to confer Honorary Degrees (see Graces 1–8, p. 361). Admission will be by ticket only and details of the arrangements and application for tickets are expected to be published in the *Reporter* on 20 April 2016.

VACANCIES, APPOINTMENTS, ETC.

Electors to the BP Professorship of Chemistry

The Council has appointed members of the ad hoc Board of Electors to the BP Professorship of Chemistry as follows:

The Vice-Chancellor, in the Chair

(a) on the nomination of the Council Professor Lynn Gladden, T Professor Christopher Hunter, EM

(b) on the nomination of the General Board
 Professor Shankar Balasubramanian, T
 Professor Lindsay Greer, SID
 Professor Robert Grubbs, California Institute of Technology

(c) on the nomination of the Faculty of Physics and Chemistry Professor Clare Grey, PEM Professor John Pyle, CTH Professor Christopher Schofield, University of Oxford

Electors to the BP Foundation McKenzie Professorship of Earth Sciences

The Council has appointed members of the *ad hoc* Board of Electors to the BP Foundation McKenzie Professorship of Earth Sciences as follows:

Professor Jeremy Sanders, SE, in the Chair, as the Vice-Chancellor's deputy

(a) on the nomination of the Council Professor Michael Bickle, Q Professor Dame Ann Dowling, SID

(b) on the nomination of the General Board Professor Mary Fowler, DAR Professor Lindsay Greer, SID Professor Thorne Lay, UC Santa Cruz

(c) on the nomination of the Faculty Board of Earth Sciences and Geography Professor Philip England, University of Oxford Professor James Jackson, Q Professor Robert White, ED

Electors to the Professorship of Music

The Council has appointed members of the *ad hoc* Board of Electors to the Professorship of Music as follows:

Professor Martin Millet, F, in the Chair, as the Vice-Chancellor's deputy

(a) on the nomination of the Council
 Professor Paul Binski, CAI
 Professor Judith Weir, Master of the Queen's Music

- (b) on the nomination of the General Board Professor John Butt, University of Glasgow Professor Frolova-Walker, CL Professor Susan Rankin, EM
- (c) on the nomination of the Faculty of Music Dr Samuel Barrett, *PEM* Professor Eric Clarke, *University of Oxford* Professor Nicholas Marston, *K*

Vacancies in the University

A full list of current vacancies can be found at http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/.

RAND Professorship of Health Services Research; the University hopes soon to be in a position to appoint to this post (see Grace 2, p. 360); informal enquiries: Professor John Danesh, Head of the Department of Public Health and Primary Care, or Professor Jonathan Mant (email: jm677@medschl.cam.ac.uk or tel.: 01223 330320); closing date: 2 March 2016; further particulars: http://www.jobs.cam.ac.uk/job/9365/; quote reference: RH08213

The University values diversity and is committed to equality of opportunity.

The University has a responsibility to ensure that all employees are eligible to live and work in the UK.

Appointments, reappointments, and grants of title

The following appointments, reappointments, and grants of title have been made:

APPOINTMENTS

Senior Assistant Registrary

University Offices (Estate Management). Mr Steven Timothy Giles, B.A., Dip.Arch., Plymouth, RIBA, and Mr Grahame Jenkins, Dip.Arch., PET, B.A., East Anglia, B.A., London, RIBA, appointed from 1 December 2015 until the retiring age.

Assistant Under-Librarians

University Library. Dr Kristin Holly Williams, B.A., *Mary Baldwin College, USA*, M.A., *Pennsylvania*, Ph.D., *Harvard*, appointed from 1 February 2016 until the retiring age and subject to a probationary period of nine months. Ms Georgina Mary Cronin, B.A., *UWE*, *Bristol*, M.Sc., *Northumbria*, appointed from 22 February 2016 until the retiring age and subject to a probationary period of nine months.

REAPPOINTMENTS

Director of Institute

Centre for Business Research. Professor Simon Deakin, PET, reappointed from 1 October 2016 for a further three years.

Assistant Director of Institute

Centre for Business Research. Dr Michael Kitson, CTH, reappointed from 1 January 2016 for a further three years.

GRANTS OF TITLE

Affiliated Lecturers

Law. Mr Thomas Adams, CC, Dr Asif Hameed, SE, Dr Simon de Smet, Dr Charalampos Hari Psarras, CTH, Dr Brian Damien Sloan, R, Dr Martin Henry Steinfeld, Mr Andreas Loakim Televantos, F, and Professor Anthony David Yates, R, have been granted the title of Affiliated Lecturer from 1 October 2015 until 30 September 2016. Mr Bill Allan, Dr Jonathan Daniel Bild, Ms Alysia Paige Blackham, CL, Dr Fernando Lusa-Bordin, SID, Dr Veronika Fikfak, HO, Ms Sarah Fraser-Butlin, Mr Leslie Kosmin, Dr Christopher Kuner, Dr Caroline Mary Lanskey, Dr Amy Claire Ludlow, CAI, Mr Henry Michael Mares, SID, Dr Rose Anne Melikan, CTH, Mr Peter William Neyroud, W, Sir Dennis O'Connor, Dr Federica Isabella Paddeu, Q, Dr Michael Edward Rice, DAR, Mr Gavin Robert, Dr Yvonne Patricia Salmon, CC, Mr Andrew Sanger, N, Dr David Paul Waddilove, CTH, Dr Shona Wilson Stark, CHR, and Dr Rumiana Vladimirova Yotova, LC, have been granted the title of Affiliated Lecturer from 1 October 2015 for a further year.

CORRECTION

Certain of the details published in the Appointments notice on 3 February 2016 (*Reporter*, 6413, 2015–16, p. 344) are incorrect. The notice should read as follows:

Deputy Head of Department

Biochemistry. Professor David Mark Carrington, JN, appointed from 1 January 2016 for three years.

AWARDS, ETC.

Scholarships and Prizes, etc. awarded

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

Cambridge Endowment for Research in Finance (CERF)

The 2016–18 Fellowship scheme of the CERF is open to lecturers and senior lecturers of the University who conduct research into some aspects of finance; they are appointed for two years and annual remuneration is £8,000. The closing date is 24 February 2016.

Further information is available at http://www.cerf.cam.ac.uk/people/cerf-fellows.

Seatonian Prize

The Examiners of the Seatonian Prize for the best English poem on a sacred subject give notice that the subject for 2016 is 'Jubilate Agno'.

The Prize is open for competition among all members of the Senate, and all persons who are possessors of the status of Master of Arts. Further details are available at http://www.divinity.cam.ac.uk/admin/seatonian.

EVENTS, COURSES, ETC.

Announcement of lectures, seminars, etc.

The University offers a large number of lectures, seminars, and other events, many of which are free of charge, to members of the University and others who are interested. Details can be found on Faculty and Departmental websites, and in the following resources.

The What's On website (http://www.admin.cam.ac.uk/whatson/) carries details of exhibitions, music, theatre and film, courses, and workshops, and is searchable by category and date. Both an RSS feed and a subscription email service are available.

Talks.cam (http://www.talks.cam.ac.uk/) is a fully searchable talks listing service, and talks can be subscribed to and details downloaded.

Brief details of upcoming events are given below.

Endellion String Mendelssohn, Webern, and Beethoven, at West Road htt *Quartet* Concert Hall, at 7.30 p.m. on 24 February 2016

https://www.cambridgelivetrust.co.uk/ tickets/events/endellion-string-quartet-3

REGULATIONS FOR EXAMINATIONS

Examination in Applied Biological Anthropology for the M.Phil. Degree

(Statutes and Ordinances, p. 479)

With immediate effect

The General Board has, on the recommendation of the Degree Committee for the Faculty of Human, Social, and Political Science, approved an amendment to the regulations so as to remove reference to option courses and bring the regulations into line with information provided to students in the Course Handbook.

By amending Regulation 1(d) so as to read 'two written assignments as prescribed by the Degree Committee (which may take the form of an essay, article, or laboratory report).'

NOTICES BY FACULTY BOARDS, ETC.

Natural Sciences Tripos, Part II (Biological and Biomedical Sciences), 2016–17

The Faculty Board of Biology gives notice, in accordance with Regulation 30 for the Natural Sciences Tripos, that the following combinations of Major and Minor Subjects will be offered in the Natural Sciences Tripos, Part II (Biological and Biomedical Sciences) in 2016–17.

Subject to any restrictions announced in a particular year by the Faculty Board under the provisions of Regulation 30, candidates are required to offer in the examination for Part II Biological and Biomedical Sciences of the Natural Sciences Tripos:

- (a) the examination requirements of one Major Subject;
- (b) the examination requirements of one Minor Subject;
- (c) a dissertation of not more than 6,000 words, excluding tables, figures, and references.

All subjects make provision for candidates to offer a dissertation.

The subjects available and permissible combinations are listed below. Some subjects have restrictions on the number of candidates that can be accepted. Where possible this is indicated below; further information will be available as part of the Part II Subject Allocation process.

I IIC IVI	ajor Subjects for 2010–17 wi	II DC.	
	Major Subject	Permissible Minor Subjects	Examination requirements
402	Pathology (A and B)	103 104 105 107 108 109 113 114 116 118 119 120 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
403	Pathology (A and C)	104 105 107 108 109 111 113 114 116 117 118 119 120 122 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
404	Pathology (A and D)	103 104 105 107 108 109 113 114 116 117 118 119 120 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
405	Pathology (B and C)	104 105 107 108 109 111 113 114 116 118 119 120 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
406	Pathology (B and D)	103 104 105 106 107 108 109 111 113 114 116 118 119 120 121 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
407	Pathology (C and D)	104 105 107 108 109 111 113 114 116 117 118 119 120 123 124 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
408	Pharmacology	104 107 108 109 113 114 115 116 117 119 120 122 123 125 126 127 128	Four written papers of three hours each.
409	Psychology	108 111 115 121 124 125 Students may choose additional Minor Subjects that do not have lecture clashes with the Psychology modules chosen – please consult the relevant lecture timetables	Four written papers of three hours each.
411	Biochemistry (maximum 7 candidates)	104 109 113 114 122 128	Five written papers: four papers of three hours each and one paper of three and a quarter hours.
412	Plant sciences (Cellular – M1, M2, L1, L3)	104 105 106 107 108 109 111 115 116 118 119 121 122 124 125 127 128	Four written papers of three hours each.
413	Plant sciences (Ecology – M3 and Zoology M2, L2 and Zoology L4)	103 104 105 106 107 108 109 111 113 114 118 121 122 124	Four written papers of three hours each.
414	Genetics (maximum 13 candidates)	104 105 107 109 113 114 115 116 118 122 125 127 128 A fifth Genetics module can be taken as a Minor Subject	Four written papers of three hours each.
415	Physiology, development, and neuroscience (maximum 21 candidates)	106 108 111 121 122 127 128	Four written papers of three hours each.
424	Pathology (B and E)	103 104 107 108 109 113 114 116 118 123 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
425	Pathology (C and E)	104 107 108 109 113 114 116 117 118 122 123 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
426	Pathology (D and E)	103 104 107 108 109 113 114 116 117 118 123 126	Four written papers of three hours each.
427	Zoology (choose two from Zoology modules M1 to M8 or Plant sciences M3, and two from L1 to L7 or Genetics module 5)	Students may choose Minor Subjects that do not have lecture clashes with the Zoology modules chosen – please consult the relevant lecture timetables	Four written papers of three hours each.
428	Psychology, neuroscience, and behaviour (PNB)	Students may choose Minor Subjects that do not have lecture clashes with the PNB modules chosen – please consult the relevant lecture timetables	Four written papers of three hours each.

The Minor Subjects for 2016–17 will be:

Minor Subject

	Minor Subject	Examination requi
103	Health and disease (HSPS Paper BAN4) (maximum 15 candidates)	One written paper of
104	Human origins (HSPS Paper BAN3) (maximum 15 candidates)	One written paper of
105	Behavioural ecology (HSPS Paper BAN2) (maximum 15 candidates)	One written paper of
106	Neural degeneration and regeneration (Neuroscience module N5) (maximum 15 candidates)	One written paper of
107	Philosophy and ethics of medicine (History and philosophy of science) (<i>maximum 50 candidates</i>)	One written paper of
108	Health, medicine, and society (HSPS, Paper Soc 13)	One written paper of
109	The family (Psychological and Behavioural Sciences, Paper 11) (<i>limited spaces</i>)	One written paper of
111	Central mechanisms of motivation and emotion (Neuroscience module N6) (<i>maximum 15 candidates</i>)	One written paper of
113	Early medicine (History and Philosophy of Science, Part II, Paper 2) (<i>maximum 12 candidates</i>)	One written paper of
114	Modern medicine and biomedical sciences (History and Philosophy of Science, Part II, Paper 5) (<i>maximum 12</i> <i>candidates</i>)	One written paper of
115	Psychology of education (Education Studies Tripos, Part II) (maximum 10 candidates)	One written paper of
116	Sociology of education (Education Studies Tripos, Part II)	One written paper of
117	Philosophy of education (Education Studies Tripos, Part II)	One written paper of
118	History of education (Education Studies Tripos, Part II)	One written paper of
119	Plant and microbial genetics (Genetics module 2)	One written paper of
120	Human genetics (Genetics module 4)	One written paper of
121	Evolutionary genetics (Genetics module 5)	One written paper of
122	ETECH Project in entrepreneurship	A group project assi the Minor Subject r individual assignm 500 words together Minor Subject mar
123	Development and psychopathology (Psychological and Behavioural Sciences, Paper 8) (<i>limited spaces</i>)	One written paper of
124	Psychology and social issues (Psychological and Behavioural Sciences, Paper 9) (<i>limited spaces</i>)	One written paper of
125	Gender development: biological, psychological, and clinical perspectives (Psychological and Behavioural Sciences, Paper 10) (<i>limited spaces</i>)	One written paper of
126	Exploring music psychology (Music, Part II, Paper 17) (maximum one candidate – candidates must demonstrate some musical knowledge to be permitted to study this option)	One written paper of
127	Conservation science (Zoology module M2) (not available to students taking Zoology module M2 as a Major Subject)	One written paper of
100	\mathbf{D}^{\prime}	0

128 Bioinformatics (maximum 50 candidates)

Please note that accurate timetable information for subjects Psychology, Neuroscience and Behaviour, and Zoology are not yet available, and therefore they do not yet appear as compatible subjects. Updates to this Notice will be published as further information becomes available.

Candidates should consult the examination regulations of the relevant Tripos for the latest examination requirements.

Examination requirements

	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
15)	One written paper of three hours' duration.
f	One written paper of three hours' duration.
1)	One written paper of three hours' duration. One written paper of three hours' duration.
e	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	A group project assignment worth 60% of the Minor Subject mark, plus two individual assignments of no more than 500 words together worth 40% of the Minor Subject mark.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
	One written paper of three hours' duration.
10)	One written paper of three hours' duration.
me	One written paper of three hours' duration.
•	One written paper of three hours' duration.

One written paper of three hours' duration.

FORM AND CONDUCT OF EXAMINATIONS, 2016

Notices by Faculty Boards, or other bodies concerned, of changes to the form and conduct of certain examinations to be held in 2016, by comparison with those examinations in 2015, are published below. Complete details of the form and conduct of all examinations are available from the Faculties or Departments concerned.

Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Tripos, Part II, 2016: Correction

Further to the Notices published on 11 November 2015 (*Reporter*, 6403, 2015–16, p. 120), and 3 February 2016 (*Reporter*, 6413, 2015–16, p. 345) the Faculty Board of Asian and Middle Eastern Studies gives notice that, with effect from the examination to be held in 2016, the form of the examination for the following paper for Part II of the Tripos will be as specified below:

X.9. Judaism II (Paper C.8 of the Theological and Religious Studies Tripos)

The examination for this paper will consist of a three-hour written paper which will be divided into two sections, A and B, corresponding to the set topics. Section A will consist of at least three questions. Each question will consist of an unseen selection drawn from primary texts of classical rabbinic literature; candidates must provide a written commentary on any one of these, based on text-analysis skills developed in the classes, lectures, and supervisions. Section B will contain at least eight essay-style questions on the topic of Jewish Law. Candidates will be required to attempt two questions from section B.

No candidate's preparation for the examination in 2016 will be affected.

Theological and Religious Studies Tripos, Part IIB, 2016: Correction

Further to the Notices published on 11 November 2015 (*Reporter*, 6403, 2015–16, p. 123), and 3 February 2016 (*Reporter*, 6413, 2015–16, p. 345) the Faculty Board of Divinity gives notice that, with effect from the examination to be held in 2016, the form of the examination for the following paper for Part IIB of the Tripos will be as specified below:

GROUP C

Paper C8. Judaism II (also serves as Paper X.9 of the Asian and Middle Eastern Studies Tripos)

The examination for this paper will consist of a three-hour written paper which will be divided into two sections, A and B, corresponding to the set topics. Section A will consist of at least three questions. Each question will consist of an unseen selection drawn from primary texts of classical rabbinic literature; candidates must provide a written commentary on any one of these, based on text-analysis skills developed in the classes, lectures, and supervisions. Section B will contain at least eight essay-style questions on the topic of Jewish Law. Candidates will be required to attempt two questions from section B.

No candidate's preparation for the examination in 2016 will be affected.

REPORTS

Report of the Council on the arrangements for approving market pay

The COUNCIL begs leave to report to the University as follows:

1. In this Report the Council is seeking approval for amendments to the arrangements for approving market pay that were established by Grace 2 of 22 May 2013 approving the recommendations of the *Joint Report of the Council* and the General Board on amendments to the pay and grading scheme for non-clinical staff implemented following the Second Joint Report of 25 July 2005 (Reporter, 6302, 2012–13, p. 423).

2. Market pay was introduced for recruitment and retention purposes, replacing the award of market supplements with effect from 1 January 2014. Under the current procedure for market pay awards,¹ the HR Committee, or for professorial or equivalent staff the Remuneration Committee of the Council, must approve an award 'where the market pay exceeds 10% of the lowest salary point of the grade (or in the case of grade 12, the lowest salary point of the relevant band)', in addition to the approval of the relevant officers. In most cases where it is necessary to agree market pay for recruitment or retention purposes, immediate action is usually required and further committee approval militates against timely action.

3. The Council, on the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and with the support of the Pro-Vice-Chancellor (Institutional and International Relations) in her capacity as Chair of the HR Committee, proposes that the threshold for requiring committee approval for an award of market pay be raised to 50% or £50k (whichever is the smaller) of basic pay, i.e. in the third bullet point in paragraph 6.4 of the Joint Report, replace '10%' with '50% or £50k (whichever is the smaller)'.

4. The Council publishes statistical information annually about staff grades, additional payments, and market supplements; Tables 11(b) and (d) provide, respectively, data on market pay awards currently being paid and those newly awarded in the last year. The format of the data provided on market pay awards will be reviewed before the Notice concerning data as at 31 July 2016 is published.

5. The Council notes that the HR Committee is conducting a wide-ranging review of certain HR practices including pay and reward, for report to the Council later in 2015–16.

¹ See paragraph 6.4 of the Joint Report (Reporter, 6302, 2012–13, p. 425).

10 February 2016

6. The Council recommends:

I. That, with effect from 10 April 2016, the revised arrangements for approving market pay as set out in paragraph 3 of this Report be approved.

9 February 2016	L. K. Borysiewicz, <i>Vice-Chancellor</i>	Margaret Glendenning	Shirley Pearce
	Chad Allen	Fiona Karet	Michael Proctor
	Richard Anthony	Stuart Laing	John Shakeshaft
	Jeremy Caddick	Susan Oosthuizen	Sara Weller
	Anne Davis	Rachael Padman	I. H. White
	Think Divis	Telefinite Tribbinity	1. 11. WINTE

CLASS-LISTS, ETC.

Approved for degrees

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

This content has been removed as it contains personal information protected under the Data Protection Act.

OBITUARIES

Obituary Notices

Dr CATHERINE SEVILLE, M.A., B.Mus., LL.M., Ph.D., Fellow of Newnham College and Reader in Law, has died aged 52 years.

Professor BEGLAN BIRAND TOĞROL, B.A., M.A., Ph.D., Honorary Fellow of Newnham College and formerly Sarah Smithson Research Fellow in Psychology (1957–60), died on 19 January 2016 aged 88 years.

GRACES

Graces submitted to the Regent House on 10 February 2016

The Council submits the following Graces to the Regent House. These Graces, unless they are withdrawn or a ballot is requested in accordance with the regulations for Graces of the Regent House (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 107), will be deemed to have been approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 19 February 2016.

1. That the recommendations in paragraph 8 of the Report of the Council, dated 12 January 2016, on the reconfiguration and refurbishment of the Clinical School Building on the Cambridge Biomedical Campus (*Reporter*, 6410, 2015–16, p. 316) be approved.

2. That the recommendation in paragraph 3 of the Report of the General Board, dated 13 January 2016, on the re-establishment of a RAND Professorship of Health Services Research (*Reporter*, 6411, 2015–16, p. 327) be approved.

3. That the Readership in Theoretical Econometrics (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 723) be retitled the Readership in Econometrics.¹

4. That Regulation 9 for the Bell, Abbott, and Barnes Funds (*Statutes and Ordinances*, p. 747) be amended so as to read:²

9. Any part of the income of any of the Funds that is not expended in any year in accordance with the foregoing regulations shall be available for distribution on the recommendation of the Awarders to any of those Colleges in receipt of grants from the Colleges Fund in the previous academical year, in shares determined by the Awarders taking account of the size of each grant from the Colleges Fund and the number of resident undergraduate student members of each College, for the purpose of defraying the cost of awards made to members of those institutions who are candidates for the B.A. Degree and who are in need of financial assistance upon such conditions as their respective governing bodies shall from time to time determine.

¹ The General Board, on the recommendation of the Faculty Board of Economics, propose the retitling of the Readership to attract a wider field of applicants.

² These changes, made on the recommendation of the Awarders of the Funds, enable distribution of unexpended income to Colleges in receipt of grants from the Colleges Fund, as a means of identifying those Colleges least likely to have funds available to support those of their students who are in need of financial assistance.

Graces to be submitted to the Regent House at a Congregation to be held on 20 February 2016

The Council has sanctioned the submission of the following Graces to the Regent House at a Congregation to be held on Saturday, 20 February 2016.

1. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Law *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon CARYS DAVINA, Baroness GREY-THOMPSON, D.B.E., President of the National Council for Voluntary Organisations, Paralympic athlete.¹

2. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Law *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon HELENA LOUISE MORRISSEY, C.B.E., M.A., of Fitzwilliam College, Chief Executive Officer of Newton Investment Management, Founder and Chair of the 30% Club, business leader and gender champion.¹

3. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Medical Science *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Professor Sir DAVID KEITH PETERS, M.A., F.R.S., F.R.C.P., F.Med.Sci., Honorary Fellow of Christ's College and Clare Hall, Regius Professor of Physic Emeritus, physician and immunologist.¹

4. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Science *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Sir JONATHAN PAUL IVE, K.B.E., R.D.I., Hon. F.R.Eng., Chief Design Officer, Apple Inc., designer.¹

5. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Letters *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Dame ZAHA MOHAMMAD HADID, D.B.E., R.A., architect.¹

6. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Letters *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Sir NICHOLAS ROBERT HYTNER, B.A., Honorary Fellow of Trinity Hall, formerly Director of the National Theatre, director of theatre, film, and opera.¹

7. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Letters *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Sir NICHOLAS ANDREW SEROTA, C.H., B.A., Honorary Fellow of Christ's College, Director of the Tate, art historian and museum director.¹

8. That the title of the degree of Doctor of Music *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon JOANNA CLARE MACGREGOR, O.B.E., B.A., F.T.C.L., F.R.A.M., Honorary Fellow of Murray Edwards College, Professor of the University of London and Head of Piano at the Royal Academy of Music, pianist, conductor, and composer.¹

9. That the title of the degree of Master of Arts *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon Sir ARCHIBALD HUGH DUBERLY, K.C.V.O., C.B.E., of Wolfson College, H.M. Lord-Lieutenant for Cambridgeshire and formerly High Sheriff of the County.²

10. That the title of the degree of Master of Arts *honoris causa* be conferred under Statute A II 14 upon SUSAN MARY EDWARDS, formerly Civic and Twinning Officer for the City of Cambridge and Executive Assistant to The Right Worshipful The Mayor.²

¹ It is expected that these Honorary Degrees will be conferred at a Congregation to be held on Wednesday, 15 June 2016 (see the Notice on p. 350).

² It is expected that these Honorary Degrees will be conferred at a Congregation to be held on Saturday, 23 April 2016.

ACTA

Approval of Graces submitted to the Senate on 27 January 2016

The Graces submitted to the Senate on 27 January 2016 (*Reporter*, 6412, 2015–16, p. 334) were approved at 4 p.m. on Friday, 5 February 2016.

J. W. NICHOLLS, Registrary

END OF THE OFFICIAL PART OF THE 'REPORTER'

REPORT OF DISCUSSION

Tuesday, 2 February 2016

A Discussion was held in the Senate-House. Pro-Vice-Chancellor Professor Christopher Abell was presiding, with the Registrary's Deputy, the Senior Pro-Proctor, the Junior Pro-Proctor, and two other persons present.

The following Reports were discussed:

Report of the Council, dated 12 January 2016, on the reconfiguration and refurbishment of the Clinical School Building on the Cambridge Biomedical Campus (*Reporter*, 6410, 2015–16, p. 316).

No remarks were made on this Report.

Report of the General Board, dated 13 January 2016, on the re-establishment of a RAND Professorship of Health Services Research (Reporter, 6411, 2015–16, p. 327).

No remarks were made on this Report.

COLLEGE NOTICES

Prizes

Jesus College: The College is offering one or more prizes of £500 in 2016 for essays concerning the Philosophy of Religion by members of the University who, at the time when the essays are submitted, have taken Honours in Classics or Theology at any university within the preceding three years and who have not previously been awarded a Chadwick Prize.

Further details are available at http://www.jesus.cam.ac. uk/college-life/news-events/?oneyear=2016#Chadwick%20 Prizes%202016.

Vacancies

Trinity College: Chief Operating Officer (Junior Bursar); competitive salary; closing date: 26 February 2016; for further details and to apply: http://www.odgers.com/56385

Events

Churchill College

2016 Roskill Memorial Lecture

The 2016 Roskill Memorial Lecture, entitled *Overcoming enmity: the evolution of British-Irish relations in the 1990's*, will be given by the Rt Hon. Sir Roderic Lyne, who served as Principal Foreign Policy Advisor to Sir John Major during the period immediately before and after the Joint Declaration. The lecture will take place on Thursday, 3 March 2016 at 5.30 p.m. in the Wolfson Lecture Theatre, Churchill College.

Those wishing to attend should book via the registration link at: https://www.chu.cam.ac.uk/events/2016-roskill-lecture/.

EXTERNAL NOTICES

University of Oxford

Varley-Gradwell Travelling Fellowship in Insect Ecology: value: up to £2,500 for the support of fieldwork, travel, and other activity in the field of insect ecology; closing date: 18 April 2016; further information: contact Lynne Bradley at trustfunds@zoo.ox.ac.uk

Notices for publication in the *Reporter*, or queries concerning content, should be sent to the Editor, Cambridge University Reporter, Registrary's Office, The Old Schools, Cambridge, CB2 1TN (tel. 01223 332305, email **reporter.editor@admin.cam.ac.uk**). Copy should be sent as early as possible in the week before publication; short notices will be accepted up to **4 p.m. on Friday** for publication the following Wednesday. Inclusion of notices is at the discretion of the Editor.

© 2016 The Chancellor, Masters, and Scholars of the University of Cambridge.

All rights reserved. No part of this publication may be reproduced, stored in a retrieval system, or transmitted, in any form or by any means, without the prior permission in writing of the University of Cambridge, or as expressly permitted by law.